A

)|

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL ITS COALITION éymmghu@mg

September 24, 2003 Meeting Minutes

DATE: Wednesday, September 24, 2003 TIME: 1:30 pm —4:00 pm

PLACE: Florida Department of Transportation
District Four Headquarters, Old Auditorium
3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, FL

MEMBERS PRESENT: See Attached List

INTRODUCTION OF ATTENDEES

Jesus Martinez, ITS Administrator for FDOT District 6, called the meeting to order. He thanked all for
attending and thanked FDOT District 4 for hosting the meeting. He emphasized that we are trying to be
considerate of members who travel from Broward and Palm Beach Counties, so we will continue to rotate
the meeting location as long as other partners are available to host. Self-introductions for all attendees
followed.

RECAP OF PAST MEETINGS / COALITION UPDATE

Girish Kumar of HNTB Corporation announced that in an effort to obtain more accurate meeting minutes
a tape recorder will be used for this and all future meetings. He asked if anyone objected to the use of
the recorder and no attendees objected. Girish then provided a recap of the Coalition’s last two meetings
since some new members were present. Girish started by reviewing the list of stakeholders in the South
Florida Regional ITS Coalition, which includes the following: District 4, District 6, and the Turnpike
Enterprise from the Florida Department of Transportation, Miami-Dade Expressway Authority, and other
county government agencies including the MPOs, traffic engineering divisions and transit agencies from
Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties. In addition, the stakeholder list includes the City of
Boca Raton (since they maintain fiber and other ITS infrastructure), the Regional Transportation
Authority, and SmartRoute (region’s ATIS provider). He stated that after receiving feedback from the
stakeholders, airports and seaports have been invited, resulting in some representation from these
organizations at today’s meeting. He stated that in-between meetings e-mail and follow up
correspondence has been conducted to assure that the meetings remain meaningful. Girish mentioned
that so far there have not been any concerns. However, if there are any concerns, attendees can relay
them in a one-on-one manner or during group discussion.

Girish gave a quick overview of the Kickoff meeting held in June 2003 (meeting minutes available on the
coalition web-site). He stated that the group wanted to meet quickly thereafter and therefore another
meeting was held in July 2003. From those meetings, it was clear that a multi-modal approach was
necessary, resulting in invitation to the port authorities. Girish then stated that the coalition efforts expand
previous regional ITS efforts, such as the ATIS and Consumer Information Network (CIN). Hopefully, the
result will be stronger inter-agency relationships that everyone can benefit from. He stated that so far we
have strong consensus on two items: 1) a coalition is needed and will be beneficial, and 2) 511 will be the
number for all traveler information services for the region. Through CIN, 511 will provide information
about transit, as well as highway related traveler needs.

Jesus then stated that all transportation information in regards to the airports and seaports, such as any
road closures, would be made available on the SunGuide website and through 511. Jesus stated that
there are major benefits when we work regionally and on a multimodal basis because all modes of
transportation are just as important. He stated that the region has made an initial investment with
SmartRoute Systems as the information service provider and for facilitating regional communications.
Now it is up to the stakeholders to ensure that the most is gotten in return for that investment. Jesus also
mentioned that the 511/SmarTraveler services also provide additional pruposes, such as relaying Amber
Alerts. Girish stated that the one clear message from the previous two meetings is everyone agrees that



A

)|

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL ITS COALITION éymmghu@mg

September 24, 2003 Meeting Minutes

this should be a group focused on action, not just to discuss issues. He was able to report that all action
items from the previous meetings have been completed on-schedule.

Next, Girish asked everyone to review and provide approval of the updated July meeting minutes, which
were e-mailed and also distributed in this meeting. An update was made to the minutes for a clarification
by Miami-Dade MPO, and these comments had been incorporated into the distributed copies. Girish
stated that members may now also obtain meeting minutes on the newly launched Coalition website.
Jesus then stated that in addition to meeting minutes, handouts and other meeting materials are available
in PDF format on the coalition website. After review of the updated minutes, Rory Santana of FDOT
District 6 suggested a slight revision to the language of Carlos Roa’s statements, which the group agreed
to. Girish then suggested that first-time attendees review the first paragraph giving a recap of the Kickoff
meeting in the July meeting minutes, which gives a brief summary of the coalition’s direction. No other
comments were offered and the July meeting minutes were approved as amended.

COALITION WEBSITE LAUNCH AT SUNGUIDE.ORG

Girish Kumar stated that the coalition felt that there should be a centralized location where people could
access all information and documents, especially for members who have missed a meeting. Therefore, a
coalition website was created and is now live through a link on the SunGuide website at
www.sunguide.org. He gave a brief demonstration of how members could access meeting information,
meeting minutes, handouts, agendas or other available information in PDF format. He also stated that
John Easterling of HNTB Corporation will be the keeper of all documents provided on the website and is
listed as the primary contact on the website, along with Jesus.

Girish encouraged all members to navigate the website after the meeting and solicited suggestions for
enhancing the site. Fred Levinson of SmartRoute requested that a visible link be provided to access the
511 website on the coalition website. Girish and Jesus thought this was a great idea and agreed. The
SunGuide website has provided a link on their home page to the coalition site, although it is not on the
main page. The SunGuide webmaster was working on providing this link on the main page itself. Girish
also gave the direct address to the website, which is www.southfloridaitscoalition.org. Girish stated that
the coalition website was launched on September 18, 2003, which met the goal of having the website
ready by today’s meeting.

Gregg Letts of DTC/MDX inquired as to how the website was developed and Jesus responded that it was
completed by FDOT District 6 through an existing contract. Gregg stated that the website appears to
have involved significant effort and thought it was an ambitious effort without a coalition memorandum of
understanding (MOU). Jesus mentioned that District 6 made an initial investment by taking the lead in
organizing these meetings and starting the website because the District feels that the Coalition is
important to the region. Jesus stated that MDX would have ample opportunity to get involved in the
upcoming coalition efforts. He then stated that if MDX would like to contribute to the Coalition website it
could be discussed after the meeting.

Girish asked if there were any other questions or comments regarding the website. Mario Aispuro of
Broward MPO questioned the color selection, but he then clarified that his comment was related to the
hyperlink on the PowerPoint slide. Jesus encouraged everyone to go the website themselves and offer
comments afterwards.

SELECTION OF VISION AND MISSION STATEMENTS

Girish Kumar stated that partners providing input to create these proposed statements was a main action
item documented in the July meeting’s minutes. The suggested vision and mission statements were
circulated within the group throughout August and September, which took place as planned through e-
mail correspondence. He stated that a total of nine different vision statements were developed and that 7
stakeholders chose vision statement number 5, with some minor modifications. Vision statement number



SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL ITS COALITION &ﬂShQLPME

September 24, 2003 Meeting Minutes

5 reads: “Establish a regional approach to Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) that includes a
coordinated implementation of various transportation management technologies to facilitate regional
mobility across jurisdictional lines”. John Easterling then stated that Gregg Letts provided an alternate
vision statement just prior to the meeting which is a slight variation of vision statement numbers 4 and 5.
Gregg then stated that he disagrees with the need for having both a vision and mission statement. He
stated that he combined vision statement number 4 and mission statement number 3 to come up with a
combined statement. Jesus Martinez stated that although vision and mission statements can be viewed
as similar, there are slight differences and there is a need for both. Mark Plass of District 4 also agreed
that the group should have separate vision and mission statements. He stated that the mission and
vision might have been confused in some of the proposals developed. The vision statement documents
where you aspire to be, such as vision statement number 4 that identifies South Florida for national
recognition as a model for ITS. He then stated that the preferred vision statement (no. 5) is actually a
mission statement. Mark stated that the mission statement identifies our focus on a day-to-day basis, the
core function of the Coalition. He stated that a well-defined mission statement should be developed and
that at every meeting, members should be reminded of the mission statement. Many attendees
expressed agreement with Mark’s comments. Gregg recommended his statement be used as a vision
statement. Mark then gave a sample vision statement as “South Florida is recognized as the national
leader in cost effective, multi-jurisdictional implementation of ITS”. He thought that the vision statement
should be distinct and to the point. After the group discussed several variations of the vision statement,
the group came to a general consensus on a vision statement: “South Florida is the national leader in
cost effective, multi-jurisdictional, multi-modal implementation of Intelligent Transportation
Systems (ITS)”.

Girish then stated that 7 stakeholders also chose a common mission statement (number 1) from the
sample mission statements on the handout provided. It reads “Advance a regional Intelligent
Transportation System that is seamless and inter-modal while providing reliable real-time traveler
information”. Mark Plass offered that the mission statement may evolve as you achieve goals and
develop new goals. Jesus suggested that we adopt an enduring mission statement, not one that is short
term. Mark suggested that the mission statement be consistent with what we do on a daily basis. Jesus
agreed and stated that the mission statement should also be used to develop our goals. Micheal
Kenefsky of the RTA stated that we would be deriving goals to achieve the mission and that he preferred
the previously chosen mission statement (number 1 from the handout). Arlene Willis of Broward County
Transit did not think that the present proposed mission statement was a mission statement. She
disagreed that goals would be easily created from that mission statement. Fred Levinson stated that the
mission statement should reflect partnership because it will take everyone’s involvement to be successful.
The group then discussed several variations of the proposed mission statement. Rory Santana then
stated that the group appears to emphasize “real-time traveler information” by its inclusion in the mission
statement. He mentioned that at this point real-time traveler information is the only regional, multi-
jurisdictional function in the region. Rory acknowledged its importance, but mentioned that other regional
projects are planned beyond the ATIS and we might be limiting the mission by focusing on the traveler
information aspect. Gummada Murthy of Florida’s Turnpike Enterprise stated that the mission statement
should be broad enough to reflect the group’s vision statement. Jesus reminded that our 511 service is
one of the best nationally and everyone is not yet contributing to it. He suggested that one of our goals be
to get all construction project information to SmartRoute for public dissemination through these sources.
He emphasized that the 511/SmarTraveler service was already in-place and could be used to provide
useful traveler information through various agency participation. Arlene Willis then asked if the group
would be developing a MOU that would link the group together as partners and suggested this be
considered as part of the mission statement. Jesus agreed that a MOU would be developed, but
foresees that as a short-term goal. Mark Plass then asked what purpose do attendees envision the group
serving — that answer should be the focus of the mission statement.

Jesus then discussed several future near-term goals of the group, including the sharing of fiber resources
and coordination on the ramp metering project in Miami-Dade County. He stated that there is a need for
a regional transportation operations strategy, which is basically a formulated plan for our region’s
operations. Mark asked if we are trying to establish ways that partners can link information together.



SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL ITS COALITION &ﬂShQLPME

September 24, 2003 Meeting Minutes

Jesus emphasized that all partners should take a closer look at what others are doing and that ITS
strategy must be regional to be successful, not just for funding reasons, but because it is necessary from
an operations standpoint. Ivan del Campo of MDX then asked the group to revisit vision statement
number 5 as a mission statement. Various members suggested slight wording modifications to that
statement in order for it to be refined for approval by the entire group present. Dan Murphy of KSR
suggested that the mission statement be assigned to a separate group because planning and conflict
resolution do not appear represented in the current proposal. He did not feel the group was ready to
decide on a mission statement. Jesus clarified that through the months of July, August, and September
the coalition had engaged exactly in the thought process that Dan had suggested. Jesus and many other
attendees felt that we were ready. A consensus was reached that the attendees should select the
mission statement and it could be updated later if necessary. After the partners discussed many slight
variations of the mission statement, the group came to a general consensus on a mission statement that
reads as follows: “Serve as a resource-sharing forum that leads to coordinated planning,
implementation and operation of Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) to facilitate regional
mobility”.

REGIONAL ITS MAPS FOR EXISTING AND PLANNED INFRASTRUCTURE

Girish Kumar stated that a suggestion was made to move agenda item number 6 up in the order since
agenda items number 5 and 7 are interrelated. John Easterling gave a quick recap of the Regional ITS
Mapping/Database effort. He stated that approximately 1", years ago, a pilot effort was undertaken by
FDOT District 6 to inventory existing and planned regional ITS infrastructure. Using the information
obtained from a few of the other regional partners, specifically FDOT District 4 and the Turnpike
Enterprise, two ITS asset maps were developed in GIS. These pilot maps were distributed at the July
meeting and are now also available on the coalition website. Subsequent to the July 2003 meeting, an
official request was sent out via e-mail to all the partners requesting information regarding existing assets,
as well as planned and programmed projects. Additional copies were also available at today’s meeting.
John stated that several agencies had already responded and that in the coming months these agencies
may be contacted individually for clarification or to request more information regarding the information
submitted.

At the present, the goal of this effort is to create Regional ITS maps by the November coalition meeting
for draft distribution and review by partners. These maps should facilitate project coordination between
partners in the short-term and serve for planning of longer-term needs. John stated that all information
would need to be received within the next three to four weeks to meet the goal of preparing maps by the
November meeting. Jesus Martinez stated that the maps would then be updated every 3 to 4 months
subsequent to the draft map distribution. Girish then emphasized that the detail provided by partners is
important so that the level of detail on the maps can be reflective of the information important to all of us
in the Coalition, the main users of the maps. He stated that it is up to the coalition to decide if a 5-year or
10-year planned project list is used. Marilda Hoover of FDOT District 4 suggested that a 5-year plan be
used since that coincides with the work program used by FDOT and a few other attendees agreed.
Gregg Letts then suggested that both a 5-year and a 10-year map be created, so that projects can be
prioritized easier in relation to funding programs. This will facilitate moving projects that planning efforts
have already begun into work programs. Jesus stated that except in the case of operations and
maintenance, his office was not presently looking beyond a 5-year window for ITS capital improvements.
However, there is merit to adding the project further out when that information is available. He further
emphasized to the group the importance of sending all available project information since the map will
only be as good as the effort we put into it. Marilda questioned the level of detail needed since she had
not received the request (a copy was then provided to her). Jesus then stated that members provide all
information that would be useful to the group; however, some levels of detail may be too extensive for
portrayal in the maps or database, but that can be decided later after reviewing. For instance, Marilda
has details of all intersections included for signal upgrade in Broward County, but that will mean mapping
a few thousand intersections in the County. Some debate occurred between several attendees, but a
decision was made to start with as much detail as available. Girish mentioned that in some cases, such
as with signal controller upgrades, it might just be an information item in a table or a “corridor” line on a



A

)|

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL ITS COALITION éymmghu@mg

September 24, 2003 Meeting Minutes

map. He requested that the first step was to get the information and then there could be discussion of
what is pertinent on a case-by-case decision.

The product created will serve as a regional tool for our region to work better together and enhance
coordination of projects. Jesus gave an example of how previous coordination between Districts 4 and 6
avoided the installation of two DMS on [-95 within 1,500 feet of each other. FDOT has learned from that
experience and hopes that all partners can benefit from these maps and database. Girish also stated that
as part of the deliverable for coalition partners, hard copies of the database lists with pertinent project
details could also be distributed. Gregg Letts then suggested that the maps show ownership of the ITS
infrastructure. Girish explained that through information sharing GIS will allow that function through the
fields in the database, as well as customized maps of other fields. He re-emphasized that the group look
at the detailed request and attempt to provide all fields requested, including the maintaining agency of the
ITS infrastructure. Debate occurred over how much detail should be placed on the maps, such as
detector stations, location reference markers, etc. A general consensus was reached that maps that
show every detail of certain projects might be cluttered and these types of projects might simply be
displayed by a line with accompanying tabular lists giving a summary of project details (22 ramp signal
locations, 54 detector stations, etc.) Gregg agreed that this would be more conducive to the detail that
MDX has for planned projects. Girish requested that tabular lists of projects with device summaries be
submitted when GIS maps or format with more detail is not available. Marilda inquired as to whether she
should submit GIS shapefiles, when available, containing the exact locations of devices, such as signal
controller upgrades or communications expansions. Girish stated that GIS coverage is a preferred format
and it could be determined later after reviewing what is shown on the maps.

Rory Santana suggested that it would be advantageous for partners to see others projects, whether it be
in map format or through tabular lists. Therefore, he suggested that everyone submit their plans in a
format that could be reviewed at the next meeting. Decisions on what is appropriate to show on maps
can be made by this forum after reviewing what we have in our plans. Guy Francese of FDOT District 4
then suggested that we have a “New Project Discussion” item on each meeting’s agenda so participants
can be aware of new developments in the region. Girish concluded this topic by asking the group to
provide the information requested at least one week prior to the next meeting.

SELECTION OF COALITION GOALS

Jesus Martinez asked the group to review the copy of proposed goals distributed, make comments and
submit any additional goals desired. Due to time constraints, this agenda item will be carried over to the
next meeting. These additions can be submitted here today or via e-mail/fax to HNTB before the next
meeting. He stated that at the next meeting we will discuss goals and prioritize the next efforts of the
coalition from those results. He also stated that coalition structure, which is agenda item number 7, will
follow that item and be closely interrelated to the goals chosen.

MEETING SCHEDULE

Jesus Martinez stated that the last Wednesday of every other month had been the typical schedule of
meetings, which would set the next meeting date on the Wednesday prior to Thanksgiving, probably not
an ideal meeting day. A meeting date of Wednesday, November 19, 2003 was proposed. Ivan del
Campo then suggested that the next meeting date be advanced to maintain interest of group members
and speed progress on outstanding agenda items. A clear consensus was reached that the next meeting
should be held a month earlier than previously discussed and October 29, 2003 at 1:30 PM was chosen.
A few potential locations were discussed with the exact location to be determined. The next meeting
has now been set for October 29, 2003 at 1:30 PM at the Miami-Dade Expressway Authority (Board
Room), 3790 NW 21 Street, Miami, Florida.



=

)|

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL ITS COALITION &ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁ

September 24, 2003 Meeting Minutes

ACTION ITEMS

Before closing the meeting, Girish Kumar facilitated a summary of action items that was agreed upon by
the partners in attendance. The agreed upon action items are as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

o)

For the Coalition meeting on October 29, 2003, partners will be ready to select Coalition goals.
Any additional goals can be e-mailed to HNTB (jeasterling@hntb.com ) prior to the next meeting
(preferably at least 3 business days prior).

The next meeting will also include an agenda item for establishing an organizational structure for
the Coalition (sub-committees, etc.).

HNTB will e-mail the September 24, 2003 meeting minutes to coalition partners, as well as make
them available via the website. Participants should review these prior to the next meeting in
order to discuss and approve these minutes.

Partners will also focus on the drafting of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) at the next
meeting, so participants are encouraged to review the ATIS MOU for South Florida and the
Central Florida Regional Transportation Operations Consortium MOU previously distributed at the
July meeting (both available on the coalition website under the Coalition Documents tab — July
meeting).

Partners are asked to submit their ITS deployment plans, consistent with the formal request
distributed previously and additional discussion at the meeting above, to HNTB at least one week
prior to the next meeting.

Jesus Martinez then brought the meeting to a close and thanked all partners for attending.



